
A Meeting of the SPECIAL COUNCIL EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE will be held in FF4B - Civic Offices, Shute 
End, Wokingham RG40 1BN on WEDNESDAY 13 JUNE 
2018 AT 6.00 PM

Manjeet Gill
Interim Chief Executive
Published on 5 June 2018

This meeting will be filmed for inclusion on the Council’s 
website.

Please note that other people may film, record, tweet or blog 
from this meeting.  The use of these images or recordings is 
not under the Council’s control.

Public Document Pack



Our Vision

A great place to live, an even better place to do business

Our Priorities

Improve educational attainment and focus on every child 
achieving their potential

Invest in regenerating towns and villages, support social and 
economic prosperity, whilst encouraging business growth

Ensure strong sustainable communities that are vibrant and 
supported by well designed development

Tackle traffic congestion in specific areas of the Borough

Improve the customer experience when accessing Council 
services

The Underpinning Principles

Offer excellent value for your Council Tax

Provide affordable homes

Look after the vulnerable

Improve health, wellbeing and quality of life

Maintain and improve the waste collection, recycling and fuel 
efficiency

Deliver quality in all that we do



MEMBERSHIP OF THE SPECIAL COUNCIL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Councillors 
Lindsay Ferris Charlotte Haitham Taylor John Kaiser
Julian McGhee-Sumner Bill Soane Simon Weeks

Substitutes
Stuart Munro Rachelle Shepherd-DuBey

ITEM 
NO. WARD SUBJECT PAGE

NO.

1.  ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN
To elect a Chairman of the Special Council Executive 
Committee for the 2018/19 Municipal Year.

2.  APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIRMAN
To appoint a Vice Chairman of the Special Council 
Executive Committee for the 2018/19 Municipal Year.

3.  APOLOGIES
To receive any apologies for absence

4.  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
To confirm the Minutes of the Meeting held on 27 
January 2017.

5 - 8

5.  DECLARATION OF INTEREST
To receive any declarations of interest

6.  PUBLIC QUESTION TIME
To answer any public questions

The Council welcomes questions from members of the 
public about the item included within this agenda.

Subject to meeting certain timescales, questions can 
relate to the items which are on the agenda for this 
meeting.  For full details of the procedure for 
submitting questions please contact the Democratic 
Services Section on the numbers given below or go to 
www.wokingham.gov.uk/publicquestions

7.  MEMBER QUESTION TIME
To answer any Member questions relating to the item 
included within this agenda

http://www.wokingham.gov.uk/publicquestions


8.  None Specific APPOINTMENT OF STATUTORY DIRECTOR OF 
CHILDREN'S SERVICES AND DIRECTOR OF 
ADULT SOCIAL SERVICES
Council is required to appoint statutory officers, 
including the Director of Children’s Services and the 
Director of Adult Social Services. 
 
Following the departure of Paul Senior, the Interim 
Director of People Services, it is necessary to appoint 
Officers who will have responsibility for the statutory 
children’s and adults’ social care functions.   It is 
therefore proposed to appoint, on an interim basis, 
Lisa Humphreys to the statutory role of Director of 
Children’s Services and Martin Sloan to the statutory 
role of Director of Adult Social Services.
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Lisa Humphreys be 
appointed to the statutory role of Director of Children’s 
Services and Martin Sloan to the statutory role of 
Director of Adult Social Services on an interim basis 
with immediate effect. 

CONTACT OFFICER
Anne Hunter Democratic and Electoral Services Lead Specialist
Tel 0118 974 6051
Email anne.hunter@wokingham.gov.uk
Postal Address Civic Offices, Shute End, Wokingham, RG40 1BN



MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 
SPECIAL COUNCIL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

HELD ON 26 JANUARY 2017 FROM 9.05 PM TO 9.25 PM

Committee Members Present
Councillors:  Bob Pitts (Chairman), Rob Stanton (Vice-Chairman), Keith Baker, 
Lindsay Ferris, Anthony Pollock and Angus Ross

Other Councillors Present
Councillors: Richard Dolinski, Clive Jones and Pauline Jorgensen 

1. APOLOGIES 
There were no apologies for absence received.

2. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
The Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 28 January 2016 were confirmed as 
a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 

3. DECLARATION OF INTEREST 
There were no declarations of interest received.

4. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME 
There were no public questions received. 

5. MEMBER QUESTION TIME 
There were no Member questions received.

6. COUNCIL TAX BASE 2017/18 AND EMPTY PROPERTY DISCOUNTS 
The Committee considered a report relating to the proposed Council Tax Base for 2017/18 
in respect of the whole Borough and all constituent parts in order that each precepting 
body could subsequently set their Council Tax budgets for the year.  The report also 
contained proposals for altering the percentage discount and timeframe of certain empty 
property discounts.

The Executive Member for Economic Development and Finance advised the meeting that 
the Council Tax Base was a technical calculation required to be made each year relating 
to the number of Band ‘D’ properties that were in the Borough.  

Councillor Pollock also drew Members’ attention to information contained in the report 
relating to the proposed changes to empty property discounts and bad debt provision.

RESOLVED That:
1) the proposed Council Tax Base, for the whole area and by Parish, as set out in the 

report be agreed; 
 
2) the proposed allocation of £60,000 grant to the parishes in respect of council tax 

reduction as set out in the council tax base table be approved; 

3)       the levels of discount for Council Tax charging in respect of certain classes of empty 
property in accordance with the details set out in this report be approved.

5

Agenda Item 4.



7. COUNCIL TAX REDUCTION SCHEME 
The Committee considered a report setting out a proposed localised Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme (CTR) which would ensure that all working age Borough residents, 
who may experience financial difficulties in paying their council tax liabilities, had access to 
a scheme that offered financial assistance.

Members were informed by the Executive Member for Economic Development and 
Finance that benchmarking against neighbouring authorities had taken place when 
considering changes to the Scheme and as a result it was proposed that all recipients of 
CTR pay a minimum of 20% towards their council tax liability which was in line with other 
authorities.

Councillor Ferris raised a number of concerns with the proposals particularly as he felt that 
the report did not contain sufficient financial information on which to make a decision.  As 
an example he cited that there was no evidence to support the expected saving of £150k. 
Given that the proposal was to increase the minimum amount payable from 10%-20% 
Councillor Ferris also felt that the report should have contained information about how 
much money was received last year following the agreed changes and what the impact 
had been on residents.  In addition information on how much it cost, how many people 
were involved, how much extra they would be expected to pay and the likely impact on 
residents involved should have been included.  Councillor Ferris also felt that the impact 
on the Council eg figures demonstrating the likely impact on the utilisation of the Hardship 
Fund as a result of the proposed changes should also have been included in the report.  
In response to the concerns raised Councillor Pollock responded that the Council had 
consulted widely on its proposals and having looked at neighbouring authorities had seen 
that Reading collected 20%. Collectability had been examined and Councillor Pollock 
stated that the Hardship Fund would assist those residents who found that they could not 
pay their council tax liabilities.  He also pointed out that moving from 10%-20% would only 
result in an increase of around £3 per week and he felt that this was a modest proposal in 
light of the financial pressures the Council was facing.

Councillor Ferris also raised concerns about the proposed restrictions on the backdated 
beneficial changes being set at one calendar month and the impact this would have on 
residents who were often on zero hours contracts or had jobs where the hours varied from 
week to week which would lead to them having to inform the Council every time there was 
a change in their circumstances.  In light of the fact that it takes the Council approximately 
six weeks to process a claim Councillor Ferris felt that it might be discriminatory for the 
Council to limit residents to four weeks.  Councillor Pollock responded that the reason for 
the change to a four week notification period was to bring it into line with the rules around 
Housing Benefit and the change was not aiming to penalise people who just forget but to 
stop people who took much longer periods to inform the Council of any change.  Councillor 
Pollock clarified that at the present time if a resident took two years to inform the Council 
of a change this could lead to the Council having to backdate beneficial changes to that 
date.  The proposed change was intended to encourage residents to advise the Council of 
any changes in their circumstances and would mean that the Council was only liable to 
pay one month backdated beneficial changes; thereby managing the financial risk to the 
Council.

RESOLVED That:
1) a local CTR scheme for 2017/18 be adopted on the same basis as the 2016/17 

scheme with the following changes:

6



a. all recipients of CTR pay a minimum of 20% towards their council tax liability;
b. cease the awarding of backdated “beneficial changes”. The scheme to state 

that all changes must be notified within one calendar month;

2) all applicable amounts, premiums, allowances, disregards and deductions used in 
the calculation of entitlements be uprated in line with the same increases applied to 
the Government set Prescribed and Default CTR schemes, along with any other 
legislative changes;

3) the full disregard currently allowed for War Widows and War Disability Pensions be 
continued from 1 April 2017 in respect of the Prescribed and Local council tax 
reduction and housing benefit schemes;

4) funds be made available to the hardship fund, known as Section 13A, for those who 
cannot pay their council tax liabilities, particularly as a result of changes for 17/18. 
This sum will be funded from the general fund and spend for 16/17 is estimated at 
£8,500.

7



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4. Minutes of Previous Meeting

